
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING PACKET 

September 03, 2024 @ 6:00pm Heritage Hall in Smith Park 
 
 

1. Call to Order: Mayor Bill Cook 
2. Roll Call: Clerk of Council 
3. Invocation: 
4. Pledge of Allegiance: 
5. Action on Minutes:   (1) Special Meeting - 07/22/2024 

        (2) Regular Meeting - 08/19/24  
  (3) Special Meeting - 08/26/24 

6. Communications: 
7. City Manager Report:  Attached 
8. Committee Reports: 
9. Comments from Members of the Public: *Comments limited to 5 minutes or less 

 
10. RESOLUTIONS: (NONE) 

 
11. ORDINANCES: (1-Intro; – 3-Action*) 
*A. Ordinance 2024-46 (Introduced on 08/19/24. Public Hearing and Action Tonight) 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1060.99 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NEW 
CARLISLE REGARDING GARBAGE AND RUBBISH COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL 
*B. Ordinance 2024-47 (Introduced on 08/19/24. Public Hearing and Action Tonight) 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 648 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NEW 
CARLISLE TO ADDRESS UNMANNED AIRCRAFT SYSTEMS 
*C. Ordinance 2024-48 (Introduced on 08/19/24. Public Hearing and Action Tonight) 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 248 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NEW 
CARLISLE REGARDING CITY POLICY 
D. Ordinance 2024-49 (Introduction Tonight. Public Hearing and Action on 09/16/24) 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR THE CLARK COUNTY SOLID 
WASTE MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
 

12. OTHER BUSINESS: 
• Additional City Business: 

o Intergovernmental Meeting 9/30/24 @ THS.  6:00PM 
o Open for Discussion on City Related Business 
o Acting Clerk of Council Discussion 
o Continuation of City Council Vacant Seat Appointment 

 
13. Executive Session: (1) To consider the appointment, employment, dismissal, discipline, promotion,  

 demotion, or compensation of a public employee or official. 
(2) To consider the purchase of property. 

 
14. Return to Regular Session: 
15. Adjournment 

 
 
 
 

Next City Council Work Session is Monday, September 09, 2024 @ Heritage Hall in Smith Park 6:00PM. 
 

Next City Council Regular Meeting is Monday, September 16, 2024 @ Heritage Hall in Smith Park 6:00PM. 
 



7/22/24

RECORD OF PROCEEDING
MINUTES: CITY OF NEW CARLISLE, OHIO Special Meeting @ Smith Park Shelter House held
7/22/24 @ 6:00 pm
1. Call to Order:Mayor Cook calls the meeting to order.
2. Roll Call: Bridge calls the roll- Cook, Shamy, Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston 5 members present
3. Invocation: Trusty
4. Pledge of Allegiance: All are Welcome to Participate
5. Action on Minutes: none
6. Communications: none
7. City Manager's Report: none
8. COMMITTEE REPORTS: none
9. COMMENTS FROMMEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC: none
10. RESOLUTIONS: none
11. ORDINANCES: none
12. OTHER BUSINESS:
Council met to discuss the following items for the City of New Carlisle:
Boards and Committee Handbook
Discussions on Parks and Rec Board
Budget Alignments
Public Service
Motion by Lindsey 2nd by Shamy to excuse Grimm and Bahun from the meeting YES: 5 Wright,
Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 5-0
13. Executive Session: none
14. Adjournment: 1st Lindsey 2nd Shamy @ 7:47 pm YES: 5 Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook,
Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 5-0

Mayor Bill Cook
_________________________________

Clerk of Council Emily Berner

______________________________



8/19/24

RECORD OF PROCEEDING
MINUTES: CITY OF NEW CARLISLE, OHIO REGULAR SESSION MEETING @ Smith Park Shelter
House held 8/19/24 @ 6:00 pm
1. Call to Order:Mayor Cook calls the meeting to order.
2. Roll Call: Berner calls the roll- Cook, Bahun, Shamy, Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston. 6 members present
3. Invocation: Trusty
4. Pledge of Allegiance: All are Welcome to Participate
5. Action on Minutes:
Regular Minutes 1st Shamy 2nd Eggleston YES: 6 Cook, Bahun, Shamy, Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston
NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0
6. Communications: none
7. City Manager's Report:
DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS- Given at 2nd meeting of the month.

Service Report:

Wright asks if the sewers are looked at and if road repairs are complete. She asks about the other roads
being paved. Kitko notes Washington to Smith, Villa and explains the cost, length of the road, and the
repairs to the curbs needed. Wright asks about why plans for expansion at the wastewater plant. Kitko



8/19/24

notes that the study and plan can be set before actual construction occurs. Wright asks about the additional
park equipment. Eggleston asks about the time frame for sidewalks on Pease and Lake.

Fire/EMS Report:



8/19/24

Trusty noted there was a large house fire in town. He brought a helmet that was on fire. He also noted that
the cause is still under investigation.

Planning and Zoning Report:



8/19/24



8/19/24

Wright asks about the tool lending shed and the two items reported. Bridge notes that the items were
borrowed, and there is not a lot of activity there.

Police Report:

Finance Report:



8/19/24



8/19/24



8/19/24

Wright asks about the ATT bill. Harris notes that it includes phones, internet, and items for fire/EMS that
have different billing addresses. Lindsey asks about the wages, and Harris notes that the City Manager
line item includes totals for multiple people.
Motion to accept the finance report 1st Eggelston 2nd Lindsey YES: Eggleston, Cook, Bahun, Shamy,
Wright, Lindsey NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0
Motion to accept the Mayors report 1st Eggleston 2nd Lindsey YES: Eggleston, Cook, Bahun, Shamy,
Wright, Lindsey NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0

Informational Items from the City Manager:

Below are items City Manager Bridge was asked to look into. Council discussions on when to meet to
discuss CIP. Bridge notes that the discussion will come in mid-October. Cook notes he would like to get
through the interviews and do the CIP at the next work session. Bridge notes that it will not be current if
the council does it earlier. Continued discussions on when to have the interviews. Lindsey motions to
meet on 8/21/24 with no 2nd. Eggleston asks why they can’t do them on 8/26/24 when the work session is
already scheduled. Motion by Lindsey to have the interviews for both council and clerk applicants on
8/26/24 with a 2nd by Wright YES: Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook, Bahun, Shamy, Wright NAY: 0 Accepted
Wright asks if it will be individual and Cook notes a special meeting with interviews.



8/19/24



8/19/24



8/19/24



8/19/24

8. COMMITTEE REPORTS: none
9. COMMENTS FROMMEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC:
Janel Zimmerman 219 Prentice- Notes a sign on Scott St. should have said “big hole”. Letting the city
know there are a few more holes on Scott. Ms. Zimmerman notes at Carlisle Park there has been
vandalism and many families near her will not allow their kids to visit that park. Council and Admin note
cameras are too expensive, no internet available.
Rhonda Mannaman 307 Adams St.- Against marijuana sales. Does not want to see this easily
accessible. Notes some of the laws on public usage. She is against both recreational and medicinal forms.
She asks the council about public use and notes there are loopholes.
Dan Rodewald- 1014 W. Lake Ave- Thanks Kitko and Bridge for the Pickle Ball court. Rodewald notes
he was on council for four years and noted the need for businesses in town. The Council needs to open
their mind to another business to help the city. He adds for Mr. Kitko to “keep it up”
Janel Zimmerman 219 Prentice: notes she is against recreational marijuana.
Dan Rodewald 1014 W. Lake Ave- adds the chance of selling to someone under 21 is zero. Selling to
someone underage involves jail time. Transactions involve state id’s, scanned and a wait time before you
even get into the store.
Bridge notes a CC will not allow for someone to get a medicinal card.



8/19/24

10. RESOLUTIONS:
Resolution 2024-09R
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE OFFICIAL CERTIFICATE OF ESTIMATED RESOURCES FOR
2025 ALONG WITH THE TAX YEAR 2025 RATES AND AMOUNTS CERTIFICATION FROM THE
CLARK COUNTY BUDGET COMMISSION 1st Lindsey 2nd Shamy ex:yearly housekeeping starts the
20025 budget process YES: Wright, Lindsey, Egglrston, Cook, Bahu, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0

Resolution 2024-10R
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE STREET SWEEPER 2024 BOND FUND 1st Shamy 2nd
Eggleston YES: Cook, Bahun, Shamy, Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0

11. ORDINANCES:
Ordinance 2024-39 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER, OR THE
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICE/ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER, TO ENTER INTO A
CONTRACT FOR THE PURCHASE OF DE-ICING ROCK SALT 1st Lindsey 2nd Shamy Kitko notes
80.00 per ton Wright asks 1 or 2 years. Kitko notes 1 year. Cook asks about the brine solution. Bridge
notes council never moved forward. Kitko noted the problems. LIndsey asks about many tons he is
buying? Kitko noted 300 bids but usually buys 100. YES: Cook, Bahun, Shamy, Wright, Lindsey,
Eggleston NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0

Ordinance 2024-40 AN ORDINANCE DETERMINING TO PROCEED WITH THE
IMPROVEMENT OF CERTAIN PUBLIC STREETS WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE
CITY OF NEW CARLISLE, OHIO BY LIGHTING THEM 1st Shamy 2nd Lindsey yearly housekeeping,
1st step in assessments. Wright asks about the cost and whether we saved money with the LED lights.
Bridge notes $.60, and only a little is saved. Lindsey asks who pays, and Bridge notes city residents with
street lights. YES: Eggleston, Cook, Bahun, Shamy, Wright, Lindsey NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0

Ordinance 2024-41 AN ORDINANCE LEVYING ASSESSMENTS FOR THE IMPROVEMENT OF
CERTAIN PUBLIC STREETS WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF NEW
CARLISLE, OHIO BY LIGHTING THEM 1st Shamy 2nd Lindsey ex: 2nd in step to assess for lighting
and authorizes amount. YES: 6 Eggleston, Cook, Bahun, Shamy, Wright, Lindsey NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0

Ordinance 2024-42
AN ORDINANCE CERTIFYING TO THE CLARK COUNTY AUDITOR AND AUTHORIZING
PLACEMENT ON THE TAX DUPLICATE CERTAIN DELINQUENT UTILITY ACCOUNTS FOR
COLLECTION WITH REAL ESTATE TAXES 1st Lindsey 2nd Shamy, ex: yearly housekeeping. Wright
asks how some are so much. Bridge, Harris, and Kitko explain that they are sewer-only accounts that
cannot be shut off; therefore, they continue accumulating. YES: 6 Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook,
Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0

Ordinance 2024-43 AN ORDINANCE CERTIFYING TO THE CLARK COUNTY AUDITOR AND
AUTHORIZING PLACEMENT ON THE TAX DUPLICATE CERTAIN UNCOLLECTED WEED
AND/OR GRASS CUTTING FEES FOR COLLECTION WITH REAL ESTATE TAXES 1st Shamy 2nd
Bahun ex: for grass fees. Lindsey asks about the 6 in vs 8 in. Bridge notes it is from last year. YES: 6
Shamy, Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook, Bahun NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0

Ordinance 2024-44 AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A MORATORIUM ON ADULT USE
CANNABIS OPERATORS WITHIN THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE, OHIO 1st Shamy 2nd Lindsey
ex: prevents adult use disp for one year. YES: Bahun, Shamy, Lindsey NAY: Eggleston, Cook, Wright
3-3 motion dies

Ordinance, 2024-45 AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING CERTAIN APPROPRIATIONS
CONTAINED IN NEW CARLISLE CITY ORDINANCE 2023-61 1st Lindsey 2nd Shamy
ex:supplementals YES:6 Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook, Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0

Ordinance 2024-46 (Introduction Tonight. Public Hearing and Action on 09/03/24)
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1060.99 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE
CITY OF NEW CARLISLE REGARDING GARBAGE AND RUBBISH COLLECTION AND
DISPOSAL



8/19/24

Ordinance 2024-47 (Introduction Tonight. Public Hearing and Action on 09/03/24) AN
ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 648 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF
NEW CARLISLE TO ADDRESS UNMANNED AIRCRAFT SYSTEMS

Ordinance 2024-48 (Introduction Tonight. Public Hearing and Action on 09/03/24) AN
ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 248 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF
NEW CARLISLE REGARDING CITY POLICY

12. OTHER BUSINESS:
City offices closed on 9/2/24 for Labor Day
Bahun asks about the prices of the homes. He notes that the sign says upper 200s. Bahun asks if it is the
same type of house, smaller? Bridge notes they asked about single-car garages, as he knows there is no
reduction in square feet.
Bahun asks about the cut-through for the development. Bridge notes it has to be moved slightly due to gas
lines. Bahun said that Mr. White mentioned that the power company wanted to put in equipment. Kitko
explained the situation. Bahun asks about the comprehensive plan that can be completed in-house,
including discussions on in-house vs. hiring a facilitator.
Wright agrees to meet with the planning director and get the process started. Cooks would like it to start
soon. Bridge notes that the comprehensive plan is set to be completed in 2025. If the council wishes to
move forward before year's end, he can make a supplemental.
Cook motions to start the process as soon as possible. Bridge notes he does not need a motion. He asks
the council if they would like to scrap things they already worked on and move forward. Wright notes
they may be in 2025 before the funds are needed. Lindsey asks how much funds will be required. Bridge
does not have a quote. The Council continued discussions on starting in-house and moving to the
professional facilitator and things to change, add, or remove from the plan. Mr. Peters from the audience
noted it could be difficult to do in house.
Mike Lowrey 816 Plumwood - gives his condolences to Vice Mayor Eggleston on the recent loss of her
brother. He noted the town is a better place without the Eggleston Family.
Cook thanks the members of the council and admin that went to Grimm’s funeral and viewing.
VM Eggleston motioned to plant a tree, with a second by Cook. After quick discussions, Bahun suggested
that the council purchase the tree and rescind their motions.
13. Executive Session: 1st Cook 2nd Shamy @ 7:38 YES: Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook, Bahun,
Shmy NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0
Move to regular session: 1st Lindsey 2nd Shamy @ 8:21 pm YES: Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook,
Grimm, Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0
14. Adjournment: 1st Lindsey 2nd Shamy@ 8:21 pm YES: Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook,
Grimm, Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 6-0

Mayor Bill Cook
_________________________________

Clerk of Council Emily Berner

______________________________



8/26/24

RECORD OF PROCEEDING
MINUTES: CITY OF NEW CARLISLE, OHIO Special Meeting @ Smith Park Shelter House held
8/26/24 @ 6:00 pm
1. Call to Order:Mayor Cook calls the meeting to order.
2. Roll Call: Berner calls the roll- Cook, Bahun, Shamy, Wright, Eggleston 5 members present
3. Invocation: Mayor Cook
4. Pledge of Allegiance: All are Welcome to Participate
5. Action on Minutes: none
6. Communications:
Public Fraud training given by City Manager Bridge.
7. City Manager's Report: none
8. COMMITTEE REPORTS: none
9. COMMENTS FROMMEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC: none
10. RESOLUTIONS: none
11. ORDINANCES: none
12. OTHER BUSINESS:
Council preps to interview applicants for the vacant council position and clerk of council position.

13. Executive Session: Motion by Shamy 2nd by Wright to move to executive session to interview
candidates at 6:16 pm. YES: Bahun, Shamy, Wright NAY: Eggleston, Cook Accepted 3-2.
Motion by 2nd by to move to regular session YES: 5 Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook, Shamy NAY: 0
Accepted 5-0

Motion by Bahun 2nd by Shamy to open nominations for the Clerk position. YES: Wright, Eggleston,
Cook, Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 5-0
Eggleston motions for Christine Stapleton 2nd by Shamy
Wright motions for Jackie Rasor with 2nd by Bahun
Bahun motions to close with a 2nd by Eggleston YES: Cook, Bahun, Shamy, Wright, Eggleston
Vote for Stapleton- YES: 4 Wright, Eggleston, Cook, Shamy NAY: 0 Abstain 1 Bahun related Accepted
4-0-1
Motion by Shamy with 2nd by Wright to move the official vote for the vacant council position to 9/3/24.
YES: 5 Eggleston, Cook, Bahun, Shamy, Wright NAY: 0 Accepted 5-0
Motion by Bahun to excuse Lindsey with second by Shamy YES: 5 Wright, Eggleston, Cook, Bahun,
Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 5-0

14. Adjournment: 1st Eggleston 2nd Shamy @ pm YES: 4 Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Shamy NAY:
1 Cook Accepted 4-1

Mayor Bill Cook
_________________________________

Clerk of Council Emily Berner

______________________________



City Manager Report 
September 03, 2024 

A. DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS

• The Following Departmental Reports will be given at the next City Council meeting that will be held on 
Monday, September 16, 2024.

o Finance, Public Service, Planning & Zoning, Mayor’s Court, Fire/EMS, and Police

B. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

• Discussion Topics
o 3 Readings of Ordinances

■ Increase readings from 2 to 3 to allow for more time for discussion before voting
■ Will need to amend Rules of Council

◊ Discussion
o 2024 Town Hall 

■ Move from November 18, 2024, to December 02, 2024?
■ 12/02/24 City Council will vote on the 2025 Operating Budget – Motion Requested

o 2025 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) & Operating Budget Timeline
■ Intro and First Read - 11/18/24
■ Action - 12/02/24
■ Work Session Dates with City Council between 10/07/24 – 11/11/24

o No Knock Registry – Update
o Ballot Proofs

■ Ballot Proofs for Chickens and Charter Amendments - Updates
o City / Union Negotiations

■ Begins in late September
o 2023 Audit

■ Update
o Monroe Meadows TIF Ordinance Schedule

■ Introduction and First Reading: 09/16/2024
■ Second Reading: 10/07/2024
■ Third Reading and Action: 10/21/2024
■ Effective Date of Legislation: 11/20/2024

o Disaster Recovery and Response Plan
■ Discuss/Review at a later Work Session or Regular Session
■ Final Plan will be to be adopted by City Council

o Business Continuation Plan
■ Update needed due to operational advances with technology
■ City Council will need to approve changes via a Resolution

o Policy or Other Items Council is Working On
■ Citizen of the Year

o Upcoming Legislation
■ The Reserves on Honey Creek TIF Legislation, round 2 – TBD
■ Business Continuation Plan
■ Collective Bargaining Unit Contract

o Additional Discussion Topics

Attachment Summary: 
• None

Motion Summary: 
• 2024 Town Hall Date



 

 

ORDINANCE 2024-46 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1060.99 OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE REGARDING 

GARBAGE AND RUBBISH COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL 
 
       WHEREAS, Chapter 1060 of the Codified Ordinances of the City of New Carlisle 
establishes rules and regulations for the collection of garbage and rubbish within City limits; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 1060 makes no provision regarding who is responsible for 

enforcing the chapter; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 1060.99 sets forth the penalty for violations of Chapter 1060; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council is requesting changes to the penalties for violations under 

Chapter 1060; and 
 
 WHEREAS, compliance with the City’s garbage and rubbish collection rules and 
regulations would be strengthened by amending Section 1060.99 to add who is responsible for 
enforcement and by modifying the penalties.   
 
       NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY ORDAINS that 
Section 1060.99 of the Codified Ordinances of the City of New Carlisle be amended as follows: 
 
1060.99   ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTY. 
    
(a)  Enforcement.  Any law enforcement officer, the Planning Director or his or her designee, or 
the Code Enforcement Officer or his or her designee, may file any misdemeanor complaints and 
issue any misdemeanor citations, and take all such other actions as are necessary, to enforce this 
chapter. 
 
(b)  Penalty.  Whoever violates or fails to comply with any of the provisions of this chapter is 
guilty of a minor misdemeanor and shall be fined not more than one hundred dollars ($100.00) 
for each offense fifty dollars ($50.00) for a first offense, one hundred dollars ($100.00) for a 
second offense occurring within six (6) months of the first offense, and one hundred fifty dollars 
($150.00) for a third and each subsequent offense thereafter occurring within six (6) months of 
the first offense.  A separate offense shall be deemed committed each day during or on which a 
violation or noncompliance occurs or continues.  Each of the foregoing offenses shall be a 
separate violation, but no violations shall be charged within thirty (30) days of each other.  
 

Passed this __________day of _____________, 2024. 
 

 
                ______________________________ 
                 Bill Cook, MAYOR 
 
                                                                                        ______________________________ 
                Emily Berner, CLERK OF COUNCIL 
          
  



 

 

1st

2nd:

Wright Y N
Bahun Y N
Lindsey Y N
Mayor Cook Y N
V. Mayor Eggleston Y N
Shamy Y N
Vacant Y N

Totals:

Pass Fail

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________ 
Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW     
 
 
 
 
  Ordinance Requested by  
  Council Member Kathy Wright 
 
  _______________________________ 
     Kathy Wright 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Intro: 08/19/24 
  Action: 09/03/24 
    Effective: 09/18/24 
 



1st

2nd:

Wright Y N
Bahun Y N
Lindsey Y N
Mayor Cook Y N
V. Mayor Eggleston Y N
Shamy Y N
Grimm Y N

Totals:

Pass Fail

ORDINANCE 2024-47 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 648 OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE TO ADDRESS 

UNMANNED AIRCRAFT SYSTEMS 
 
      WHEREAS, Chapter 648 of the Codified Ordinances of the City of New Carlisle 
pertains to peace disturbances within City limits; and  
 

WHEREAS, an “Unmanned Aircraft System” is an aircraft operated without the 
possibility of direct human intervention from within or on the aircraft, including devices 
commonly known as flying model aircraft, remote-controlled aircraft, and unmanned 
aerial vehicles frequently referred to as drones; and 
 

WHEREAS, during the July 1, 2024 and August 5, 2024 City Council meetings, 
privacy and other issues related to the use of Unmanned Aircraft Systems were discussed; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, City Council is requesting that an Unmanned Aircraft Systems section 
be added to Chapter 648 for the purpose of protecting the privacy and well-being of City 
residents. 
 
      NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY ORDAINS 
that Chapter 648 of the Codified Ordinances of the City of New Carlisle be amended by 
adding Section 648.14 as set forth on Exhibit A attached to this Ordinance.   
 

Passed this ________ day of ___________________, 2024. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
               Bill Cook, Mayor 
 

_____________________________ 
          Emily Berner, Clerk of Council 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW 
 
 
Ordinance Requested by  
Council Member Kathy Wright 
 
_______________________________ 
     Kathy Wright 
 
 
 
 
Intro: 08/19/2024 
  Action: 09/03/2024 
    Effective: 09/18/2024 
  



 
Exhibit A 

Ordinance 2024-47 
 
648.14  UNMANNED AIRCRAFT SYSTEMS. 
 
(a) Definitions.   
 

(1) “Unmanned Aircraft System” shall mean an aircraft operated without the 
possibility of direct human intervention from within or on the aircraft, 
including devices commonly known as flying model aircraft, remote-
controlled aircraft, and unmanned aerial vehicles frequently referred to as 
drones. 

 
(2) “Person” shall mean an individual operating an Unmanned Aircraft System 

for recreational use and not commercial use. 
 

(3) “Law Enforcement Agency” shall mean a lawfully established state or local 
public agency that is responsible for the prevention and detection of crime, 
and the enforcement of penal, traffic, regulatory, game and/or controlled 
substance laws. 

 
(b)  Prohibited Uses.   
 

(1) Unless authorized by the Police Administrator or the Fire Administrator, no 
person shall operate any Unmanned Aircraft System, within the City limits, in a 
manner such that the Unmanned Aircraft System flies within four hundred (400) 
feet of any of the following: 

 
A. Any municipal building or other property owned or used by the City; or 

 
B. Any public or private school property, including all buildings and athletic 

facilities located on school property, without the additional express written 
consent of the school’s superintendent or director of education. 

 
(2) No person shall operate any Unmanned Aircraft System, within the City limits, to 

view or capture images of people on private property or to view or capture 
images of private property that would otherwise not be visible without the use of 
an Unmanned Aircraft System. The use of any Unmanned Aircraft System that 
causes the owner of private property or a tenant or occupant of such private 
property to believe that he or she is being viewed or imaged in a harassing 
manner is prohibited.  

 
(3) No person shall operate any Unmanned Aircraft System, within the City limits, 

over private property without written consent of the homeowner.  
 

(4) No person shall operate any Unmanned Aircraft System above a roadway, within 
the City limits, if such operation could impair a driver’s line of sight, distract 
drivers, or come into contact with motor vehicles operating within said roadway.  

 
(5) No person shall equip any Unmanned Aircraft System with a weapon, such as a 

firearm, explosive device, incendiary device, ballistic knife, knife, zip gun or any 



 
other dangerous ordnance or similar device as described in Sections 2923.11 or 
2923.24 of the Ohio Revised Code.  

 
(6) No person shall operate any Unmanned Aircraft System, within the City limits, 

without first registering the device with the Federal Aviation Administration 
(FAA) as required by FAA guidelines. Any person operating an Unmanned 
Aircraft System must be able to present, immediately upon request by any member 
of the police or fire force, a current certificate of registration issued by the FAA 
for the Unmanned Aircraft System. 

 
(c) Inapplicability.  This Section shall not prohibit the use of Unmanned Aircraft 

Systems by any Law Enforcement Agency for lawful purposes and in a lawful 
manner.  

 
(d) Penalty.    
 

(1) Whoever violates (b)(2), (b)(3) or (b)(5) of this Section is guilty of a 
misdemeanor of the first degree. 

 
(2) Whoever violates (b)(1), (b)(4) or (b)(6) of this Section is guilty of a 

misdemeanor of the fourth degree.  
 
(e) Relationship to Other Laws and Unconstitutionality.   

 
(1) Should any provision, paragraph, sentence or word of this Section be 

rendered or declared invalid by any final court action in a court of competent 
jurisdiction or by reason of any preemptive legislation, the remaining 
provisions, paragraphs, sentences and words of this Section shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 

(2) In the event that any part of this Section is declared unconstitutional, such 
declaration shall in no way affect the operation of any other part hereof of 
this Section, and the remainder of this Section shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 



1st

2nd:

Wright Y N
Bahun Y N
Lindsey Y N
Mayor Cook Y N
V. Mayor Eggleston Y N
Shamy Y N
Vacant Y N

Totals:

Pass Fail

 
 
 

ORDINANCE 2024-48 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 248 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE REGARDING CITY POLICY 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 248 of the Codified Ordinances of the City of New Carlisle addresses 

various City policies; and 
 
       WHEREAS, on March 4, 2024, City Council passed Ordinance 2024-10 to authorize the City 

Manager to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with the Ohio Council 8 and Local 101,  
A.F.S.C.M.E, AFL-CIO for the purpose of establishing an Incentive Pay Policy for certain City  
employees; and      

 
        WHEREAS, an ordinance is necessary to codify the Incentive Pay Policy.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY ORDAINS that 
Chapter 248 of the Codified Ordinances of the City of New Carlisle be amended to add the Incentive Pay 
Policy set forth on Exhibit A attached to this ordinance. 

 
 

Passed this day of , 2024. 
 
 

      ___________________________________________ 
        Bill Cook, Mayor 

 
 
 

Emily Berner, Clerk of Council 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Intro: 08/19/2024  

         Action: 09/03/2024  
              Effective: 09/18/2024 

  



 
Exhibit A  

Ordinance 2024-48 
 

 
 

248.18 - INCENTIVE PAY POLICY 
 

(a) Objective  

The City of New Carlisle is committed to recognizing and rewarding exceptional performance by 
all employees, including those in the Water and Wastewater Departments. The purpose of this 
Incentive Pay Policy is to encourage and motivate employees to achieve higher levels of 
efficiency, productivity and innovation, thereby contributing to the overall success of the city's 
water and wastewater services. 

(b) Eligibility  

All full-time employees within the Water and Wastewater Departments are eligible for 
participation in the incentive pay program after approval from the Director of Public 
Service/Assistant City Manager or the City Manager. 

(c) Administration  

(1) The Director of Public Service/Assistant City Manager, or the City Manager in the absence of 
the Director of Public Service/Assistant City Manager, shall provide, in writing, to the Finance 
Department the date of each license obtained, the name of the employee, the department of the 
employee and the classification level obtained. 

(2) No back-pay will be provided to current employees. However, each current employee shall 
immediately be granted the incentive pay based on his/her class level certifications. 

(d) Incentive Payment Schedule  

(1) Incentive pay shall be added to the employee’s hourly wage. 

(2) Incentive pay shall be paid bi-weekly as part of the regular paycheck. 

(e) Communication  

(1) New employees shall be informed of the incentive pay policy and its criteria upon hire. 

(2) Current employees shall be notified of the policy and granted incentive pay at the earliest date 
allowable. 

(3) Clear and transparent communication shall be maintained throughout the performance 
assessment process. 

 

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

 



 

 

(f) Review and Modification  

(1) This policy shall be subject to periodic review by City Administration to ensure its 
effectiveness and relevance. 

(2) Modifications to the policy may only be made by City Council based on feedback, changing 
circumstances or evolving organizational priorities. 

(3) The City of New Carlisle aims to foster a culture of excellence and continuous improvement 
within the Water and Wastewater Departments by implementing this Incentive Pay Policy, 
ultimately enhancing the quality of services provided to the community. 

(g) Incentive Pay Structure  
 
(1) Water Department  
 (A) Plant Class – 1  
 (B) Incentive Pay Structure:  
  (1) The incentive pay structure shall be based on a tiered system, with additional 
compensation beginning at the next level after the plant minimum:  
   (a) Class 1 License Obtained – No incentive pay granted.  
   (b) Class 2 License Obtained - $0.50 added to the employee’s hourly wage.  
   (c) Class 3 License Obtained - $0.50 added to the employee’s hourly wage.  
   (d) Class 4 License Obtained - $0.50 added to the employee’s hourly wage.  
  (2) The maximum total compensation that can be added to an employee’s pay rate 
through this policy is $1.50. 

(2) Wastewater Department  

 (A) Plant Class – 3  
 (B) Incentive Pay Structure:  
  (1) The incentive pay structure shall be based on a tiered system, with additional 
compensation beginning at the Class 2 certification.  The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
will allow a Class 2 Operator to act as Operator of Record in the absence of a Class 3 Operator:  
   (a) Class 1 License Obtained – No incentive pay granted.  
   (b) Class 2 License Obtained - $0.50 added to the employee’s hourly wage.  
   (c) Class 3 License Obtained - $0.50 added to the employee’s hourly wage.  
   (d) Class 4 License Obtained - $0.50 added to the employee’s hourly wage.  
  (2) The maximum total compensation that can be added to an employee’s pay rate 
through this policy is $1.50. 

 



    

1st

2nd:

Wright Y N
Bahun Y N
Lindsey Y N
Mayor Cook Y N
V. Mayor Eggleston Y N
Shamy Y N
Vacant Y N

Totals:

Pass Fail

ORDINANCE 2024-49 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR THE CLARK 

COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS, the Clark County Solid Waste Management District (“District”), by its Policy Committee, has 
adopted a Solid Waste Management Plan for the District (“Plan”); and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 3734.55(B), the Board of County Commissioners and 
the legislative authority of each municipal corporation or township under the jurisdiction of the District must approve 
or disapprove the Plan by ordinance or resolution; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of New Carlisle in Clark County, Ohio has reviewed the Plan and considered it at a duly 
called meeting; and 

 
WHEREAS, a summary of the Plan is attached to this ordinance; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Plan furthers the public interest. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY ORDAINS that: 

 
SECTION 1.  The Solid Waste Management Plan for the Clark County Solid Waste Management District, adopted by 
the Solid Waste Policy Committee on July 25, 2024, is hereby approved. 
 
SECTION 2.  A copy of this Ordinance of Approval shall promptly be delivered, or caused to be delivered, to the Solid 
Waste Policy Committee of the Clark County Solid Waste Management District. 
 

Passed this ________ day of September 2024.  
 

_____________________________ 
                    Bill Cook, Mayor 
 

_____________________________ 
          Emily Berner, Clerk of Council 
            APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

____________________________________    
   Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Intro: 09/03/2024 
         Action: 09/16/2024  
              Effective: 10/01/2024 








